
OiO No: 54/ADC /v M / O&A/ 2022-23
F. No: Vt [/10-17/SVP|AIO &A/HAI 2O2L-22

ctrrfr ryrd fi frTdrilq, TnTr eJ?ir,3rFrftirril?i

'fr-ffT ?rffi sraa ," s6ff dBfl ,y{r} il-$ 6t-t *. HTFA ,ilsiTrg{T ,

3r6-#rqrqrq- 380 009'

{reTrq :p79) 2754 4630 E-mail: cus-ahmd-ac1-i@gov.in q'rg:(079) 2754 2943

DIN: 2O22L27LMNOOOOOOC6L4
r&$4lr,rEr$

A
Sl-{f, {T{eum / File No F. No: VIII/ 10-17/SVPIA/o&A/HQ 12027-22

B
ffiqqq-flmi} 41ft{T Tirgqr -arft's /
Show Cause Notice No. and Date

vrrr/ 10- 17l svprA/o&A/HQ I 2o2t-22
dated 10.11 ,2O2L

C Wsrlqrriem 7

Order-In-Original No
54 I ADC I VUr/ O&A I 2022-23

D
$riqr fdfq /
Date of Order-In-Original

09.L2.2022

tr ilrSs{Affilrfrs I Date of Issue 09.L2.2022

F' (flITWftH / Passed By
Vishal Malani,
Additiona-l Commissioner,
Customs, Ahmedabad.

G

3{rqrd?F sT;Tr}T gik.ren /
Address of Importer IName eind

Noticee

Mr. Junas Hasam Sumbhania
Ram Nu Khetar, Shahidi Chowk,
Salaya, Dev Bhoomi Dwarka,
Gujarat - 361310

(1) q6 cfr Eqftil * rrqtrr t frq ft:geo rqrdT friqr ilrdr t ffi q6 Errt frilTr Errf,r t I

(2)

frtS sft @Ff, trs rnter t Fi?r q,| 3il-gs qrfrr t at E6 Em sTreqr fr Erqtr 3Tfld Ts 3Treer fr nq *t
drfts t oo Q;ai fr tfi-cr 3Tq-r-d m mTdrorq, TFfff LrEfi (3Tfril), 4ff rifril, Fs*l rr+a, fqr{ effir ffrrt,

a-si"rg{r, 3rf,{qrEr6 -3800 14 if 6s g*-m tt

(3)
sfis *'mq +-d-f, ctq srr$ (s.oo 5c-$) * -qrqlFrq qrcm-B+-c a-rrT 6lfl qrB(', 3it{ i€-* €r?r 6l-fl qrRr

(i) 3Tffd{ trt r'*-cfr 3fk

(ii)
{s efr sT W rniqrfi 6H cfr fi urq *-flil qiq srrt (5.00 urt) t Fqrlrtnrq qIflfi B+,u ilrnEtdr

tnts(rt

(4)

ilr $rtqr * F*rqtr 3Tfi-d frri *. ry autraqi z.sz 1rfr+rr 10 m-dg 5T{ efffi aqr +rar Etrn,

oO uJo* * qq-A 3il'{ gnhn frqlE f il, qrratar, rtiSr rrrffiI qE k{rE fr't 3ft 3r$il t'qTer il{T

a-{6 *'Trram fiT n}rTur tqr+-ri jf 3rurr-fr tti qt, TfrffreJFffi gTf}ftrryr, 1962 fi erRr 129 *'rrcqrdi sT

rodrfl:a-"r a 6.{* fi fr(r 3rffi srkfr fi{ kqr IIr(rqT I

Page 1 of 12

I



OIO No: 54lADC /v M / O&Al 2022-73

BRIEF FACTS OF THE CASE: -

Shri Junas Hasam Sumbhania (hereinafter referred to as the 'passenger')

residing at Ram nu Khetar, Shahidi Chok, Salaya, Devbhumi Dwarka, Gujarat-
361310, holding Indian Passport bearing No. T6407125 errived from Dubai
(UAE) in Emirates Flight No. EK 538 on 28.05.2021 at SVPI Airport,
Ahmedabad. On the basis of specific intelligence received by the officers of
Customs, Air Intelligence Unit (hereinafter referred to as 'AIU ), Sardar
Vallabhbhai Patel Internationerl Airport (SVPIA), Ahmedabad that the said
passenger was carrying Gold in his baggage and that the serme would be
attempted to be smuggled into the country, the passenger was intercepted by
the AIU officers, when he was moving out of the Arrival Hall of Terminal 2 of
SVPI Airport aJter opting for the green channel in the presence of the Panchas.
The passenger was carrying one white carton box as checked-in baggage ernd

one poly bag as hand baggage. The personal search of the passenger and
examination of his baggage was conducted by the AIU Officers.

2. The passenger was asked as to whether he had any,thing to declare for
pay:rrent of Customs duties, to which the passenger replied in negative. The
said passenger was asked to walk through the Door Frame Metzrl Detector
(DFMD) Machine instalied near the green channel in the Arrival Hall of
Terminal 2 building, after removing all the metallic objects he was wearing on

his body. The passenger removed his mobile phone, belt, etc. and kept them in
the plastic tray and passed through the DFMD, but nothing objectionable was
noticed. The passenger was having one white carton box as checked-in baggage
and one poly bag as hand baggage. Thereafter, hand bag of the passengcr was
put in the Baggage Scanning machine installed near the Green Chernnel of thc
arrival ha-ll of Terminal-2, SVPI Airport by the AIU officers. Upon scanning the
hand bag, nothing suspicious was noticed. However, on scanning the white
carton box, scanned image of the speaker was found to be suspicious.

3. The AIU Officer again asked the passenger whether he was having any
dutiable goods in the said white carton box to which he replied in negative. Not
being satisfied, the AIU officers informed that, they need to open the carton box
and check the speaker thoroughly. To examine the speaker in detail, the AIU
officers and the passenger then moved to the AIU office located opposite Bclt
No.5 of the baggage hall in Terminal - 2 of SVPI Airport. The AIU officers, after
taking the consent of the passenger, opened the white carton box and found
speaker set of "PIONEER" brand having product code TS-G767OE-2 (Dual cone
speaker 6712"116cm) meant for car. The passenger was asked by the Custom
officers whether he was carrying any dutiable item (especially any metal c.g.,
Gold/ silver) inside the speaker set to which he denied having any such item.
There after the AIU officers dismantled the said speaker set and opened up the
magnet of the speakers which resulted in the recovery of Gold circular plates.
On repeated questioning and interrogation, the passenger admitted that the
said white carton box containing speaker set from which the gold was recovered
was given to him by his friend Shri Razakbhai in Dubai to hand it over at Shri
Razakbhai's house in Salaya and that he was given 300 Dirhams
(approximately Rs. 6000/-) by Shri Razakbhai.

4. Thereafter, the AIU officer called the Government Approved valuer, Shri
Kartikey Vasantrai Soni, for valuation and ascertaining the purity and exact
weight of the Gold circular plates recovered from the passenger. Shri Kartikey
Soni, Government Approved Valuer tested the purity and value of the seized
metallic plates and submitted the Valuation Report dated 28.O5.2021 as shown
below:
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S.

No.
Details of items PCS

Net Weight
in grams

Purity
Market Value

in Rs.
Tariff Value

in Rs.

1

Gold Circular plate
concealed in speaker I 2r5.O40

999.0 I
24Kt.

10,91,651 9,40,133

2
Gold Circular plate

concealed in speaker 1 t92.450 ege.o I
24Kt.

8,41,372

2 407.490 20,49,67 5 i 7,81,505

5. The goid plates (concealed in speakers) were confirmed to be of 24
Kl.l999.O purity gold, totally weighing 4O7.49O Grams, having tariff va-lue of
Rs.17,8i,505/- (Rs. Seventeen Lakhs Eighty-One Thousand Five Hundred and
Five only) and market va-lue of Rs. 20,49,675/- (Rs.Twenty Lakh Forty Nine
Thousernd Six Hundred Seventy Five Only) which had been calculated as per
the Notification No. 4712021-Customs (N.T.) dated L3lOSl2O21(gold) and
Notification No. 4812}21-Customs (N.T.) dated 20.05.2021 (exchange rate).

6. The method of testing and valuation used by the Government Approved
Va-luer was done in a perfect manner in the presence of independent Panchas
ernd the passenger who were satisfied and agreed with the testing arrd Valuation
Report arld accordingly endorsed the same.

7. It appears that the packing materiaL namely white Carton Box and
speakcr set from which the gold was recovered, used for concealing the said
gold is a-lso liable for confiscation as it was used for concealment of
smuggled/offending goods. The said packing material were also placed under
seizure vide palchnama drawn on 28.05.2021 under the reasonable belief that
sarne is liable for confiscation under Section 118(a) & 119 of the Customs Act,
1962.

8.
i)

The following documents /articles were withdrawn from the passenger: -

Boeuding pass, from Dubai (UAE) of Emirates Flight No. EK 538 dated
28.05.2021, Seat No. 48G and check-in baggage receipt bearing no. AMD
DK 0538 I 27 .

Copy of Passport No. T6407125 issued from Ahmedabad on 12.07 .2019.
Copy ofAadhar Card No. 647979389719

ii)
iii)

9. Thus, the gold circular plates of 24 Kt.l999.O purity go1d, totally
weighing 4O7.49O Grams having tariff value of Rs. L7,81,505/- (Rs. Seventeen
Lakhs trighty-One Thousald Five Hundred and Five only) and market value of
Rs. 20,49,6751- (Rs. Twenty Lakh Forty Nine Thousand Six Hundred Seventy
Irive Only) recovered from the passenger which were concea-led in the speaker
set in the white carton box carried by the passenger without declaration
appears to be smuggled into India with willfui intention to evade payment of
Customs duty and violating the provisions of Customs Act, 7962. Therefore, the
AIU officers on a reasonable belief that the said Gold which was attempted to be
smuggled by Shri Junas Hasam Sumbhania is liable for confiscation as per the
provisions of Customs Act, 1962, seized the same under Section 110 of the
Customs Act, 1962 vtde Seizure Order under Panchnama proceedings both
dated 28.05.2021 along with the materials used to conceal the gold i,e., white
carton box and the dismeintled parts of the speal<ers.

10. A statement of Shri Junas Hasam Sumbhania was recorded on
28lOSl2O27 at SVPI Airport, Ahmedabad under Section 108 of the Customs
Act, 1962, wlrcrein he inter-alia stated that;

a) he is illiterate and can speak and understand Hindi language;
b) hc was doing job in Launch in Dubai and earned salary amounting to

Rs.15,000/- to 16000/- Approx. per month;
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c) he went to Dubai in February 2021 from Ahmedabad;
d) he stated that content of Panchnama dated 28.05.2021 was explained to

him, wherein it has been mentioned that the Gold plates totally weighing
4O7.49O Grams were recovered from the speakers. The said two Gold
plates were concealed in two speakers totzrlly weighing 4O7.49O grams

[(1) weighing 215.040 grarns and (2) weighing 192.450 greLms], having
tariff va-lue of Rs. 17,81,,505/- (Rs. Seventeen Lakh Eighty One Thouseurd
Five Hundred Five only) and market value of Rs. 20,49,675/- (Rs. Twenty
Lakh Forty Nine Thousand Six Hundred Seventy Five Only). He agreed
with the content of the Panchnama dated 28.05.2021 and stated that he
was present throughout the panchnama proceedings;

e) he came from Dubai to Ahmedabad through Emirates Flight No. EK 538
on 28.O5.2021;

0 the said speakers were given by his friend Shri Razakbhai in Dubar to
handed over to his home at Salaya, Jamnagar city. He was paid for 300
Dirham (currency of Dubai) i.e. Rs. 6000 l- for the said work.

g) he also accepted that gold smuggling in India is a,n offence under
Customs Law.

h) he knew that import of gold in concea-led manner is an offence. The Gold
seized by the Customs Officers under Panchnama dated 28.05.2021 was
carried and imported illegally by him in concealed manner and same was
an offence under the provisions of Customs Act and offence was
punishable under the Customs Act;

i) he carried the Gold in concealed manner in greed to gain financial
benefits;

j) he knew that Gold imported in concealed manner and without declaring
before Customs authorities is liable for confiscation and can be seized.

11. Legal Provisions Relevant to the Case
a. As per para 2.26 of Foreign Trade Policy 2Ol5-2O Bona-fide household
goods and personal effects may be imported as part of passenger baggage as per
limits, terms and conditions thereof in Baggage Ruies notified by Ministry of
Finance.
b. As per Section 3(2) of the Foreign Trade (Development and Regulation)
Act, 1992 the Central Government may by Order make provision for
prohibiting, restricting or otherwise regulating, in a-11 cases or in specified
classes of cases and subject to such exceptions, if any, as may be made by or
under the Order, the import or export of goods or services or technologr.
c. As per Section 3(3) of the Foreign Trade (Development and Regulation)
Act, 1992 A11 goods to which any Order under sub-section (2) applies shal1 be
deemed to be goods the import or export of which has been prohibited under
section 11 of the Customs Act, 1962 (52 of 1962) and all the provisions of that
Act shall have effect accordingly.
d. As per Section 11(1) of the Foreign Trade (Development and Regulation)
Act, 7992 no export or import sha-ll be made by einy person except in
accordance with the provisions of this Act, the rules and orders made
thereunder and the foreign trade policy for the time being in force.
e. As per Section 11(3) of the Customs Act, 7962 Any prohibition or
restriction or obligation relating to import or export of any goods or class o[
goods or clearance thereof provided in any other law for the time being in forcc,
or any rule or regulation made or any order or notilication issued there under,
shall be executed under the provisions of that Act only if such prohibition or
restriction or obligation is notified under the provisions of this Act, subject to
such exceptions, modifications or adaptations as the Central Government
deems fit.
f. As per Section 2(22), of Customs Act, 7962 definition of 'goods' includes-
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i. vessels, aircrafts and vehicles;
ii. stores;
iii. baggage;
iv. currency and negotiable instruments; and
v. any other kind of movable property;

g. As per Section 2(33) of Customs Act 1962, prohibited goods means any
goods the import or export of which is subject to any prohibition under this Act
or any other law for the time being in force.
h. As per Section 2(39) of the Customs Act 1962'smuggling' in relation to
any goods, mearrs any act or omission, which will render such goods liable to
confiscation under Section 111 or Section 113 of the Customs Act 1962.
i. As per Section 77 of the Customs Act 7962 lhe owrrer of baggage shall,
for the purpose of clearing it, make a declaration of its contents to the proper
officer.
j. As per Section 110 of Customs Act, 1962 if the proper officer has reason
to believe that any goods zrre iiable to confiscation under this Act, he may seize
such goods.
k. Any goods which are imported or attempted to be imported or brought
within the Indian customs waters for the purpose of being imported, contrary to
any prohibition imposed by or under this Act or any other law for the time being
in force shall be liable to confiscation under section 111 (d) of the Customs Act
1962.
1. dutiable or prohibited goods found concealed in any manner in any
package either before or after the unloading thereof are liable to confiscation
under Section 111 (i) of the Customs Act 7962.
m. Any dutiable or prohibited goods removed or attempted to be removed
from a customs area or a warehouse without the permission of the proper
officer or contrary to the terms of such permission are liable to confiscation
undcr Section 111 0) of the Customs Act 1962,
n. As per Section ll2 of the Customs Act 1962 orty person, (a) who, in
relation to any goods, does or omits to do any act which act or omission would
render such goods liable to confiscation under Section 1 1 1, or abets the doing
or omission of such an act, or (b) who acquires possession of or is in any way
concerned in carrying, removing, depositing, harboring, keeping, concealing,
scliing or purchasing or m any mcrnner dezrling with any goods which he know
or has reason to believe are liable to confiscation under Section 1 i 1, shall be
liable to penalty.
o. As per Section 119 of Customs Act 1962 any goods used for concealing
smuggled goods shall also be liable for confiscation.
p. As per Section 123 of Customs Act 7962 (1) where any goods to which
this section applies are seized under this Act in the reasonable beiief that they
.rre smuggled goods, the burden of proving that they are not smuggled goods
shall be-
(a) in a case where such seizure is made from the possession of any person -
on thc person from whose possession the goods were seized; and
if any person, other than the person from whose possession the goods were
seized, claims to be the owner thereof, also on such other person;
(b) in any other case, on the person, if any, who claims to be the owner of the
goods so seized..
(2) This section shall apply to go1d, and manufactures thereof, watches, and any
other class of goods which the Centra-1 Government may by notification in the
Official Gazette specify.
q. As per Customs Baggage Declaration Reguiations, 20i3 all passengers
who come to India and having anything to declare or are carrying dutiable or
prohibited goods shall declare their accompanied baggage in the prescribed
form.
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Contravention and violation of Laws
L2. It therefore appears that:
(a) Shri Junas Hasam Sumbhania has involved himself in the instant case
of gold smuggling into India. Shri Junas Hasam Sumbhania had improperly
imported the Gold plates weighing 4O7 .49O grams of 24KT Gold of purity 999.O
having tariff va-lue of Rs. 77,87,505/- (Rs. Seventeen Lakh Eighty One
Thousand Five Hundred Five only) and market value of Rs. 20,49.675/- (Rs.

Twenty Lakh Forty Nine Thousand Six Hundred Seventy Five Only) in his
baggage by concealing the same in speakers without deciaring it to the Customs
by opting for Green Channel to exit the Airport with a deliberate intention tcr

evade the payment of customs duty and fraudulently circumventing the
restrictions aLd prohibitions imposed under the Customs Act, 1962 and other
allied Acts, Rules and Regulations. The improperly imported gold was given to
him by another person named Shri Razakbhai to deliver it at his house in
Salaya. For this Shri Razakbhai had offered him 300 Dirhams (Approximately
Rs. 6000/-). Therefore, the improperly imported gold by the passenger in his
baggage by way of concealment without deciaring it to the Customs on arrival in
India cannot be treated as bonafide household goods or persona-l effects. Shri
Junas Hasam Sumbhania has thus contravened the Foreign Trade Policy 2015-
20 and Section 11(1) of the Foreign Trade (Development and Regulation) Act,
7992 read with Section 3(2) and 3(3) of the Foreign Trade (Development and
Regulation) Act, 7992.
b) By not declaring the value, quantity and description of the goods
imported by him, the said passenger has violated the provisions of Baggage
Rules, 2016, read with section 77 of the Customs Act, 1962 and Regulation I) of
the Customs Baggage Declaration Regulations, 2073.
c) The improperly imported gold by the passenger, Shri Junas Hasam
Sumbhania, found concealed in his accompanied baggage without declaring it
to the Customs is thus liable for confiscation under Section 111(d), 111(i) and
111(i) read with Section 2 (22), (33), (39) of the Customs Act, 1962 and further
read in conjunction with Section 11(3) of Customs Act, 1962.
d) Shri Junas Hasam Sumbhania, by his above-described acts of omission/
commission and abetment has rendered himself liable to penalty under Section
772 of Customs Act, L962.
e) Goods used for concealing the smuggled goods by the passenger Shri
Junas Hasam Sumbhania is also liab1e for confiscation under Section 119 of
Customs Act, 1962.
f) As per Section 123 of Customs Acl 7962, the burden of proving the szud

improperly imported gold weighing 4O7 .49O grarns of 24KT Gold of purity 999.O
valued at Rs. 20,49,675/- [Market Value] and Rs. 77,81,505/- [Tariff Value] by
way of concealment in the baggage without deciaring it to the Customs, are not
smuggled goods, is upon the passenger and Noticee, Shri .Iunas Hasam
Sumbhania.

13. Therefore Show Cause Notice bearing F. No: VIil/ 10-
17ISVPIA/O&A/HQ l2O2l-22 dated 10.11 .2027 has been issued to, Shri Junas
Hasam Sumbhania as to why:

i. The two gold plates weighing 407.49O grams [(1) weighing 275.040 grams
and (2) weighing 192.450 gramsl, totally valued at Rs. 20496751- (Rs.

Twenty Lakhs Forty-Nine Thousand Six Hundred and Seventy-Five Only)
(Market Value) and Rs. 1781505/- (Rs. seventeen Lakhs Eighty-one
Thousand Five Hundred and Five only) (Tariff Value) and piaced under
seizure under panchnama dated 28.05.2021 ernd seizure memo order
dated 28.05.2021 should not be confiscated under Section 111(d), I 11(i)
and 1 1 1(i) of the Customs Act, 1962;
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ii. The packing materials, i.e., white carton box and remains of speakers,
used for concealment of the said gold plates should not be confiscated
under Section 119 of the Customs Act, 1962.

iii. Penalty should not be imposed on Shri Junas Hasam Sumbhania under
Section 112 of the Customs Act, 1962.

Defense reply and record of personal hearing: -

L4. The noticee has not submitted any written submission to the Show
Cause Notice issued to him.

15. The noticee was given an opportunity to appeared in person to represent
his case on 1 4. l1 .2022; 22.17.2022 &, 29 .71.2022, but he lails to appeared and
represent his case. In the instant case, the noticee has been granted sufficient
opportunity of being heard in person for three times but he railed to appeared
zrnd therefore I proceed further to decide the case on the basis of evidences
available on record.

Discussion and Findings:
16. I have carefully gone through the facts of this case and lind that the
noticee has not submitted written reply to notice and also not appeared in
personal heering. I therefore proceed to decide the instant case on the basis of
evidences and documents available on record,

L7. In the insteint case, I find that the main issues that are to be decided is
whether the two gold circular plate of 24 Kt. 1999.0 purity, totally weighing
4O7.49O grarns, concealing in speaker, having tariff value of Rs. 17,87,505/-
(Rs. Seventecn Lakh Eighty One Thousand Five Hundred Five only) and market
value of Rs. 20,49,675/- (Rs.Twenty Lakh Forty Nine Thousand Six Hundred
Seventy Five Only) recovered from Shri Junas Hasam Sumbhania, which were
seized vide Seizure OrderfMemo under Panchnama proceedings both dated
28.O5.2021 on the reasonable belief that the said goods were smuggied into
India, are liabie for confiscation under Section 111 of the Customs Act, 1962
(hereinafter referred to as the Act) or not and whether the passenger is liable
for penalty under the provisions of Section lL2 of the Act.

L8. I find that the panchnama clearly draws out the fact that the passengers
were intercepted when they were about to exit by opting Green Channel, and on
suspicion, personal search of the passengers and their baggage was conducted.
While passenger passed through Door F'rame Metal Detector (DFMD), no beep
sound was heard. On scanning the checked-in baggage i.e. white carton box,
the officers found dark image which indicated presence of hear,y metal; that
zrfter taking the consent of the passenger, officer opened the white carton box
and found speaker set of "PIONEER" brand having product code TS-G l6lOE-2
(Dua-l cone speaker 61f2"f 16crr,) meant for car. The officer dismantled the
speakers and on opening the magnet found gold circular plates from each
speaker i. e. two plates recovered in total. It is on record that the passenger had
admitted that he was carrying gold articles with an intent to smuggle into India
without declaring before Customs Of{icers. It is a.1so on record that the
government approved valuer had tested and certified that two gold plates are of
24 Ktl 999.O purity totally weighing 4O7.49O grarns, having tariff va-lue of Rs.
17,81,505/- and market value of Rs. 20,49,6751- and seized vide Seizure
Memo/Order under Panchnama proceedings both dated 28.05.2021, in the
presence of the passenger and Peinchas.

19. I aiso lind that the passenger had neither questioned the manner of the
panchnama proceedings at the material time nor controverted the facts detailed
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in the panchnama during the course of recording his statement. Every
procedure conducted during the panchnama by the Officers was well
documented and made in the presence of the panchas as well as the passenger.
In fact, in his statements, he has clearly admitted that he had intentionally kept
undeclared two gold plates of 24 Ktl 999.0 purity tota-lly weighing 4O7.49O
grams, concealed in speaker and not declared the same on his arrival before the
Customs with an intent to clear them illicitly and evade pa5rment of customs
duty and thereby, violated provisions of Customs Act, the Baggage Rules, the
Foreign Trade (Development & Regulations) Act, 1992, the Foreign Trade
(Development & Regulations) Rules, 1993 and the Foreign Trade Policy 2015-
2020.

20. Further, the passenger has accepted that he had not declared the gold
concealed in speakers on his arrival to the Customs authorities. It is clear casc:

of non-declaration with an intent to smuggle the gold. Accordingly, there is
sufficient evidence to say that the passenger had kept the gold which was in his
possession and failed to declare the same before the Customs Authorities on his
arrival at SVP International Airport, Ahmedabad. The case of smuggling of gold
recovered from his possession and which was kept undeclared with intent of
smuggiing the sarne and in order to evade payment of Customs duty is
conclusively proved. Thus, it is proved that passenger violated Section 77,
Section 79 of the Customs Act for import/smuggling of gold which was not for
bonafide use and thereby violated Rule 11 of the Foreign Trade Regulation
Rules 1993, and para 2.26 of the Foreign Trade Policy 2Ol5-2O.liurther as per
Section L23 of the Customs Act, 7962, goid is a notified item arrd when goods
notified thereunder are seized under the Customs Act, 1962, on the reasonabie
belief that they a-re smuggled goods, the burden to prove that they are not
smuggled, shall be on the person from whose possession the goods have becn
seized.

2L. From the facts discussed above, it is evident that Shri .Junas Hasam
Sumbhania had carried two gold plates, concealed in speakers, of 24 Ktl 999.O
purity totally weighing 4O7.49O grarns, while arriving from Dubai to
Ahmedabad, ',\dth an intention to smuggle and remove the sarne without
payment of Customs duty, thereby rendering the gold totally weighing 4O7.49O
Grams, liable for confiscation, under the provisions of Sections 111(d), 111(i)
and 111[j) of the Customs Act, 7962. By secreting the gold concealed in
Speakers and not declaring the same before the Customs, it is established that
the passenger had a clear intention to smuggle the gold clandestinely with the
deliberate intention to evade pal,rnent of customs duty. The commission of
above act made the impugned goods fal1 within the ambit of 'smuggling' as
defined under Section 2(39) of the Act.

22. It is seen that the noticee had not filed the baggage declaration form and
had not declared the gold which was in his possession, as envisaged under
Section 77 of. the Act read with the Baggage Rules and Regulation 3 of Customs
Baggage Declaration Reguiations,2013. It is also observed that the imports
were also for non-bonafide purposes, as the same was carried by the noticee for
other person on receipt of money. Therefore, the improperly imported gold
concealed in Speakers by the noticee without declaring to the Customs on
arrival in India cannot be treated as bonafide household goods or personal
effects. The noticee has thus contravened the Foreign Trade Policy 2015-20 and
Section 11(1) of the Foreign Trade (Development and Regulation) Act, 7992 read
with Section 3(2) and 3(3) of the Foreign Trade (Development and Regulation)
/'ct,7992.
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It, is therefore, proved that by the above acts of contravention, the
noticee has rendered two gold plates of 24 Ktl 999.0 purity totally weighing
4O7.49O grains, having tariff va-lue of Rs. 17,8I,505/- ald market value of Rs.

20,49,675f -, seized vide Seizure Memo/Order under the Panchnama
proceedings both dated 28.05.2021 liable to confiscation, under the provisions
of Sections 111(d), i11(i) and 1110) of the Customs Act, 1962. By using the
modus of concealing the gold in speakers by him, it is observed that the
passenger was fu11y awa-re that the import of said goods is offending in nature.
It is therefore very clear that he has knowingly carried the gold and failed to
declare the same on his arriva-l at the Customs Airport. it is seen that he has
involved himself in carrying, keeping, concealing and dealing with the impugned
goods in a manner which he knew or had reasons to believe that the same were
liab1e to confiscation under the Act. It, is therefore, proved beyond doubt that
the noticee has committed an offence of the nature described in Section 112 of
Customs Act, 1962 making him liable for penalty under Section 112 of the
Customs Acl, 7962.

23. I lind that the noticee confessed of carrying two gold plates of 24 Ktl
999.0 purity totally weighing 4O7 .49O grams by concealing in speakers and
attempted to remove the said gold from the Customs Airport without declaring
it to the Customs Authorities and thereby violating the provisions of para 2.26
of the Foreign Trade Policy 2O15-2O and Section 11(1) of the Foreign Trade
(Development and Regulation) Act, 1992 read with Section 3(2) and 3(3) of the
F'oreign Trade (Development and Regulation) Act, 1992 further read in
conjunction with Section 11(3) of Customs Act ,1962 and the relevant
provisions of Baggage Rules, 2016 and Customs Baggage Declaration
Regulations, 2013. As per Section 2(33) "prohibited goods" means any goods the
import or export of which is subject to any prohibition under this Act or any
other law for the time being in force but does not include any such goods in
respect of which the conditions subject to which the goods are permitted to be
imported or exported have been complied with. The improperly imported gold by
the passenger without following the due process of law and without adhering to
the conditions and procedures of import have thus acquired the nature of being
prohibited goods in view of Section 2(33) of the Act.

24. It is quite clear from the above discussions that the gold was concealed
and not declared to the Customs with the sole intention to evade payrnent of
Customs duty. The record before me shows that the passenger did not choose
to declare the prohibited/dutiable goods and opted for green channel of
customs clearance after arriving from foreign destination with the willful
intention to smuggle the impugned goods. Two goid plates of 24 Ktl 999.0
purity tota-l1y weighing 4O7.49O grarns, having tariff value of Rs. 77,87,505/-
and market value of Rs. 2O,49,675f -, were placed under seizure vide
panchnama drawn on 28.05.2021. Despite having knowledge that the goods
had to be declared and such import is an offence under the Act and Rules and
Regulations made under it, the passenger had attempted to remove the gold
concearled in speakers by deliberately not declaring the same by him on arrival
at arrport with the willful intention to smuggle the impugned gold into India. I
therefore, find that the passenger has committed an offence of the nature
described in Section 112(a) of Customs Act, 1962 rnaking him liable for penalty
under provisions of Section 172 of the Customs Act, 1962.

25. I further find that the gold is not on the list of prohibited items but
import of the sarne is controlled. The view taken by the Honble Supreme Court
in the case of Om Prakash Bhatia however in very clear terms lay down the
principle that if importation and exportation of goods are subject to certain
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prescribed conditions, which are to be fulfilled before or after clearance of
goods, non-fulfillment of such conditions would make the goods fall within the
ambit of prohibited goods'. This makes the gold seized in the present case
"prohibited goods" as the passenger trying to smuggle it was not eligible
passenger to bring it in India or import gold into India in baggage. Two gold
plates concealed in speakers were recovered from his possession and were kept
undeclared with an intention to smuggle the same and evade payment of
customs duty. By using this modus, it is proved that the goods are offending in
nature and therefore prohibited on its importation. Here, conditions ar:e not
fulfilled by the passenger.

26. In view of the above discussions, I hold that the two gold plates carried
by concealing in speakers and undeclared by the noticee with al intention to
clear the sarne illicitly from Customs Airport and evade payment of Customs
duty, are liable for absolute confiscation. Further, the noticee in his statement
dated 28.05.2021 stated that, the speakers were handed over to him by his
friend to deliver at his home at Salaya and for this work he received 300
Dirhams. However, he could not carne forward to submit any written
submission or appeared for personal hearing fixed for 3 times. Further, the gold

brought by him was carried for some other person and that too by concea-lmcnt
in Speakers. In the instant case, I am therefore, not inclined to use my
discretion to give an option to redeem the gold on payment of redemption finc,
as envisaged under Section 725 of the Act.

27. Further, before the Kerala High Court in the case of Abdul Razak

l2ol2(275) ELT 300 (Ker)1, the petitioner had contended that under the Foreign
Trade (Exemption from application of rules in certain cases) Order, 1993, gold
was not a prohibited item and can be released on payment of redemption finc.
The Honble High Court held as under:

"Further, as per the statement giuen bg the appellant under Section 108 of
the Act, he is onlg a carrter i.e. professional smuggler smuggling goods on
behalf of others for consideration. We, therefore, do not f.nd any merit in
the appellant's case that he has the ight to get the confiscated gold
released on paAment of redemption f.ne and duty under Section 125 of the
Act."

28. In the case of Samynathan Murugesan [ 2OO9 (2471 ELT 21 (Mad)], the
High Court upheld the absoiute confiscation, ordered by the adjudicating
authority, in similar facts and circumstances. Further, in the said case of
smuggling of gold, the High Court of Madras in the case of Samyanathan
Murugesan reported at 2OO9 (247) ELT 21(Mad) has ruled that as the goods

were prohibited and there was concealment, the Commissioner's order for
absolute confiscation was upheld.

29. Further I Iind that in a recent case decided by the Honble High Court of
Madras reported at 2016-TIOL-I664-HC-MAD-CUS in respect of Malabar
Diamond Gallery Pvt Ltd, the Court while holding gold jewellery as prohibitcd
goods under Section 2(33) of the Customs Act, 7962 had recorded that
"restriction" also means prohibition. In Para 89 of the order, it was recorded as

under;
89. While considering a praAer for prouisional release, pendingtr

adjudication, uhether all the aboue can uthollg be ignored bg tLrc authorities,
enjoined utith a dutg, to enforce tlrc statutory prouisions, rtLles and notiJications,
in letter and spiit, in consonance uith the objects and intention of the
Legislature, imposing prohibitions/restrictions under the Customs Act, 1962 or
under ang other law, for the time being in force, we are of the uieut that all tLte

authorities are bound to follout the same, uthereuer, prohibition or restriction is
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imposed, and when the word, "restiction", c"lso means prohibition, as held bg the
Hon'ble Apex Court in Om Prakash Bhatia's case (cited supra).

30 The Honble High Court Of Madras in the matter of COMMISSIONER OF
CUSTOMS (AIR), CHENNAI-I Versus P. SINNASAMY 2016 (344) E.L.T.
1154 (Mad.) held-

'lribunal hctd arrogated powers of adjudicating authoritg by directing
authority to release gold by exercising option in fauour of respondent -

lribunal had ouerlooked categortcal fi.nding of adjudicating authoritg that
respondent had deliberately attempted to smuggle 2548.3 grams of gold, by
concealing and without declaration of Customs for monetary consideration -

Adjudicating authority had giuen reasons for confiscation of gold tuhile
allouing redemption of other goods on paAment of fi.ne - Discretion exercised
by authority to deny release, is in accordance with law - Interference by
Tribunal is against law and unjustifi.ed -

Redemption fine - Option - Confi"scation of smuggled gold - Redemption
cannot be allowed, as a matter of right - Discretion conferred on
adjudicating authority to decide - Not open to Tribunal to issue any positiue
directions to adjudicating authoritg to exercise option in fauour of
redemption.

31. ln 2079 (370) B.L.T. 7743 (G.O.I.), before the Government of India,
Ministry of Finance, [Department of Revenue - Revisionary Authority]; Ms.
M;rliika Arya, Additional Secretary in Abdu1 Kalam Ammangod Kunhamu vide
Order No. 17l2019-Cus., dated 7-10-2019 in F. No. 375l06lBl2Ol7-RA stated
that it is observed that C.B.I. & C. had issued instruction vide Letter F. No.

49515192-Cus. VI, dated 10-5-1993 wherein it has been instructed that "in
respect of gold seized for non-declaration, no option to redeem the sarne on
redemption fine under Section 125 of the Customs Act, 1962 should be given
except in very trivial cases where the adjudicating authority is satisfied that
there was no conceal.ment of the gold in question".

32. Given the facts of the present case before me and the judgements and
rulings cited above, the two gold plates concea-led in speakers and carried by
the passenger is therefore liable to be confiscated absolutely. I therefore hold in
unequivoca-l terms that two gold plates of 24 kt of purity 999.O totally weighing
4O7.49O Grams. recovered from the passenger, placed under seizure would be
liable to absolute confiscation under Section 111(d), 111(i) & 111U) of the Act.

33. I furthcr find that the passenger had involved himself and abetted the act
of smuggling of two gold plates of 24 kt of purity 999.O totally weighing 4O7 "49O
grarns by concealing in Speakers. He has agreed and admitted in his recorded
statement that he travelled with two 24 Kt. 1999 purity gold plates concealed in
speerkers totzrlly weighing 4O7.490 grams from Dubai to Ahmedabad. Despite
his knowledge and belief that the gold carried by him is an offence under the
provisions of the Customs Act, 1962 zrnd the Regulations made under it, the
Passenger attempted to smuggle two 24 Kt.l999 purity gold plates totally
weighing 4O7.49O grarns by concealing in Speakers. Thus, it is clear that the
passenger has concerned himself with carrying, removing, keeping, concealing
and dealing with the smuggled gold which he knows very well and has reason to
believe that the s€une are liable for conliscation under Section 111 of the
Customs Act, 1962. Therefore, I find that the passenger is liable for penal
action under Sections L12 of the Customs Act, 1962 and I hold accordingly.
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34, Accordingly, I pass the following Order:

ORDER
I order absoiute confiscation of the two 24 Kt.l999 purity gold plates
totally weighing 4O7,49O grams, having tariff value of Rs.17,87,505/-
(Rs. Seventeen Lakhs Eighty-One Thousand Five Hundred and Five only)
and market value of Rs. 20,49,6751- Bs.Twenty Lakh Forty Nine
Thousand Six Hundred Seventy Five Only), recovered from thc
passenger, seized vide Seizure Memo/Order under the Panchnama
proceedings both dated 28.05,2021 under the provisions of Sections
111(d), 1i 1(i) and 11i fi) of the Customs Act 1962;

I order absolute confiscation of the packing/concealing materia-l i.e.

white cartoon box and remains of speakers used to conceal the recovcred
and seized gold under Section 119 of the Customs Act;

111. I impose a penalty of Rs.7,OO,OOO/- (Rupees Seven Lakh Only) on
Mr.Junas Hasam Sumbhania under the provisions of Section 112(a)(i) of
the Customs Act 1962,

35. Accordingly, the Show Cause Notice No.

17lSVPIA/O&A/HQ l2O2l-22 dated 10.11 .2027 stands disposed of
vrlr/ 10-

Additiona-l Commissioner
Customs, Ahmedabad

F. No. vi[/ 10-17/SVPIA/O&A/HQ 12021-22
DIN: 2O22L27 LMNOOOOOOC6 14

Date: 09.12.2022

By SPEED POST A.D.
To,
Mr. Junas Hasam Sumbhania
Ram Nu Khetar, Shahidi Chowk,
Salaya, Dev Bhoomi Dwarka,
Gujarat - 361310

Copy to:-
I. The Commissioner of Customs, Ahmedabad.
II. The Deputy Commissioner of Customs (AiU), SVPIA, Ahmedabad.
III. The Deputy Commissioner of Customs (Task Force), Ahmedabad.
IV. The Deputy Commissioner of Customs, SVPIA, Ahmedabad.
V. The System In-Charge, Customs, HQ., Ahmedabad for uploading on

the official web-site.
Vi. Guard File
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